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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone, to this hearing of the Public Safety

          4  Committee. Today we will be considering and voting

          5  on two resolutions which deal with the federal

          6  government obligation to assist New York City in the

          7  security and crime-fighting efforts.

          8                 At the March 18th Preliminary Budget

          9  Hearing of this Committee, Commissioner Kelly

         10  testified that the Police Department and the Office

         11  of Management and Budget were still working with the

         12  Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to ensure

         13  that all costs submitted by the NYPD for September

         14  11th-related expenses would be reimbursed to the

         15  City.

         16                 According to the Department, it was

         17  not clear at that point whether FEMA would deem all

         18  the expenses submitted by the NYPD as eligible under

         19  the current Disaster Relief Guidelines.

         20                 With regard to personnel issues, the

         21  Commissioner indicated that the City had applied for

         22  a waiver to continue to use funds for officers'

         23  salaries for Fiscal Years 2003 and 2004 under the

         24  Community-Oriented Policing Services Program, that's

         25  COPS, the Department of Justice administered grant
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          2  program created by the 1994 Violent Crime Control

          3  and Law Enforcement Act that has allowed the NYPD to

          4  hire approximately 4,000 additional officers.

          5                 The Commissioner indicated that

          6  whatever assistance this Committee could give in

          7  ensuring that FEMA funds and the COPS funds are

          8  provided to the City would be helpful and most

          9  appreciated.

         10                 It is because of the Commissioner's

         11  request and the importance of highlighting the

         12  necessity of these federal programs to the NYPD,

         13  especially in these difficult budget times, that we

         14  hold this hearing today.

         15                 Let me briefly describe these

         16  resolutions.

         17                 Resolution 144-A, which deals with

         18  the COPS Program, urges the Department of Justice to

         19  grant the City's application for a waiver to

         20  continue to use the funds for officers' salaries for

         21  Fiscal Year 2003 and 2004.

         22                 If this application is not granted,

         23  the City may lose approximately $12 million in COPS

         24  funds.

         25                 COPS funding since 1995 has assisted
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          2  New York City to bring the crime levels down to

          3  historic levels, which in turn has brought down

          4  national crime, thus achieving one of the goals of

          5  the 1994 Crime Bill.

          6                 Resolution 145-A urges FEMA to

          7  reimburse the City for all NYPD-related World Trade

          8  Center expenses.

          9                 In the past few months the Public

         10  Safety Committee has determined, through the taking

         11  of testimony, through it's own investigation, and

         12  for that I have to commend my staff, Ted Baecher and

         13  Andy Grossman and Andy Lenny, and through my own

         14  conversations with FEMA, that FEMA has denied, or

         15  deemed ineligible, approximately $88 million in

         16  police overtime expenses related to 9/11, and $181

         17  million in full-time normal gross. That's regular

         18  straight-time salary.

         19                 In addition, we've determined through

         20  other hearings in other committees, I sit on the

         21  Governmental Operations Committee, and what comes to

         22  mind is the fact that they have not reimbursed the

         23  cost of a second election. There is about $500

         24  million as of February in expenses which we deem

         25  directly related to September 11th, which FEMA has
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          2  deemed ineligible. That's more money than the whole

          3  personal income tax surcharge, and that is money

          4  that we deserve.

          5                 They have used some archaic

          6  guidelines in denying this money, guidelines which

          7  were set up to deal with hurricanes. The government

          8  cannot prevent a hurricane, however, in this

          9  situation, the federal government does have a

         10  responsibility to protect New York from terrorist

         11  attack. We were failed by the FAA, by the INS, by

         12  the CIA, and now we will not let the federal

         13  government fail in its responsibility to make this

         14  City whole.

         15                 The figures in the resolutions which

         16  we'll be voting on later are from February. Again,

         17  they were confirmed through testimony, through the

         18  Public Safety staff and through my own

         19  conversations.

         20                 I am told, my staff is told by the

         21  Mayor's Office that these numbers are now less, and

         22  that they've been successful in obtaining more FEMA

         23  money. We're more than happy to hear that testimony

         24  today, but this hearing is still necessary because

         25  this is a procedure which needs to have some light
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          2  shed on it. The City Council has an oversight

          3  responsibility, the City Council is a co-equal

          4  branch of government with budgetary responsibility

          5  and we need to know what money has been requested,

          6  what money has been denied, why it has been denied,

          7  and what money we can expect in the future.

          8                 So, the purpose of this hearing is to

          9  shed light on those topics, and I would now welcome

         10  our first testimony today.  We'll be hearing

         11  testimony from OMB. We've invited FEMA, they have

         12  not responded to our invitation. We will be getting

         13  letters and testimony in support by our federal

         14  representatives also, and by at least one member of

         15  the public.

         16                 So, our first witness today will be a

         17  representative from OMB. Are they in the room? Bud

         18  Larson.

         19                 Welcome, Mr. Larson. Let me first

         20  introduce you to the Council members who are here

         21  today.

         22                 On my far left, Council Member Phil

         23  Reed, Council Member David Yassky, Council Member

         24  Marty Golden, Council Member Helen Foster, Council

         25  Member Melinda Katz. And to my right, Subcommittee
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          2  Chair James Davis.

          3                 Thank you for coming down today. We

          4  welcome your testimony.

          5                 MR. LARSON: Good morning, Chairman

          6  Vallone, and members of the Committee.

          7                 I am pleased to be here on behalf of

          8  Mark Page and the Mayor's Office of Management and

          9  Budget, to comment on Resolution 145, concerning the

         10  City's relationship with the Federal Emergency

         11  Management Agency, or FEMA.

         12                 I've been working extensively with

         13  FEMA during the City's recovery. The City of New

         14  York has a good relationship with FEMA, and we are

         15  grateful for the cooperative nature of the federal

         16  authorities handling this matter.

         17                 The City is currently negotiating the

         18  reimbursement of our expenditures relating to

         19  September 11th, and FEMA has provided us with

         20  flexibility. The resolution states that according to

         21  the February Financial Plan, 98.3 million are the

         22  overtime expenses and $181 million of expenses for

         23  the World Trade Center related to police, full-time

         24  normal gross, will be funded by the Transitional

         25  Finance Authority.
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          2                 Since the February Financial Plan,

          3  the City has continued to work with FEMA so that

          4  many of these expenditures will be accepted under

          5  federal guidelines.

          6                 In fact, FEMA has indicated that an

          7  additional 47 million of overtime expenses will

          8  become FEMA eligible, therefore reducing the 98.3

          9  million to approximately 52 million. This additional

         10  reimbursement will be reflected in the Executive

         11  Budget later this week.

         12                 We are continuing to work with FEMA

         13  for full reimbursement of the balance of the Police

         14  Department's expenses, as well as those incurred by

         15  other City agencies.

         16                 I want to thank you for giving me the

         17  opportunity to testify today. OMB will continue to

         18  keep Council staff apprised of updates regarding

         19  FEMA, and will continue the regular briefings with

         20  Council staff.

         21                 We agree with the Council that this

         22  is a very important issue and we want to thank you

         23  for your support. We are optimistic that the City's

         24  negotiation with FEMA will continue to progress.

         25                 I would be pleased to answer any
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          2  questions that you might have at this time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, for

          4  your very brief testimony, actually.

          5                 The first question I have, you said

          6  you've been working closely with FEMA; what are, as

          7  you understand them, the FEMA guidelines now for

          8  reimbursement regarding police overtime related to

          9  September 11th?

         10                 MR. LARSON: Overtime that's directly

         11  related to the World Trade Center event is, in fact,

         12  reimbursable by FEMA. Under the normal guidelines,

         13  the City would be required to do extensive

         14  documentation of time sheets of all the officers,

         15  what they were doing, and provide all that material

         16  to the federal government.

         17                 We've worked with FEMA to come up

         18  with a simplified process that would allow us to get

         19  the maximum reimbursement without going through the

         20  arduous process which would likely be subject to

         21  significant disallowances, because it would be

         22  difficult for people to maintain that type of

         23  paperwork, given the nature of the events.

         24                 So, for the first 30 days following

         25  the World Trade Center event, all overtime worked by
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          2  the Police Department was ruled eligible for

          3  reimbursement.

          4                 Then we negotiated with FEMA a

          5  process for the next 60 days which would allow us to

          6  be reimbursed for all overtime work that exceeded

          7  what the historical overtime level was for the

          8  Police Department.

          9                 We provided FEMA with documentation

         10  as to what type of overtime had been incurred by the

         11  Police Department for the preceding three years to

         12  that time frame, and all expenses that were greater

         13  than the historical pattern of overtime were

         14  reimbursed.

         15                 Then subsequent to that we went back

         16  to FEMA and said we felt that we were still

         17  incurring a significant amount of overtime relative

         18  to the event for the Police Department beyond other

         19  city agencies, and they granted us an additional 15

         20  days, which was done in conjunction with the Police

         21  Department.  FEMA -- OMB, Office of Emergency

         22  Management talked to FEMA and the Police Department

         23  gave us an indication that an additional 15 days

         24  would get them to the point where they began to

         25  change their deployment relative to the event. FEMA
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          2  granted us that additional 15 days.

          3                 After that time period, relative to

          4  the guidelines as they stand now, we will continue

          5  to be reimbursed for any overtime that's worked

          6  directly at the site or directly related to the

          7  event; however, instead of the previous process

          8  where we were comparing it to historical levels, we

          9  now follow the standard guidelines of where we would

         10  document what the overtime was for and prepare a

         11  claim and it will be reimbursed.

         12                 The areas that are still under

         13  discussion are those areas of enhanced security,

         14  which are not necessarily directly related to the

         15  World Trade Center in providing security relative

         16  that event. While we haven't got an infirmative

         17  answer yet from FEMA, we're still under discussions

         18  with them, and they've indicated that they will

         19  continue to work with us and hopefully expand the

         20  definition so that we can get all of our overtime

         21  costs reimbursed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You said that

         23  since February you've been able to obtain an

         24  additional 47 million out of the 98 in police

         25  overtime, which leaves 52 million.
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          2                 MR. LARSON: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And we commend

          4  you for your work in that regard.

          5                 The 52 million, you mentioned briefly

          6  what that represents; could you give us a more

          7  detailed breakdown of what exactly the 50, mainly 52

          8  million represents? And by that I mean, does it

          9  relate to the actual World Trade Center site

         10  recovery efforts, does it relate to the

         11  counter-terrorism security measures throughout the

         12  City, and -- well, let's start with that before I

         13  get to my next question.

         14                 MR. LARSON: Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What

         16  specifically is still outstanding, and what is in

         17  dispute?

         18                 MR. LARSON: I can tell you what my

         19  general understanding is based on information that

         20  I've received from the Police Department.

         21                 The $52 million does not represent

         22  direct expenses related to securing the World Trade

         23  Center site, or involvement that's taking place

         24  relative to the site itself.

         25                 It represents what we consider
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          2  enhanced security throughout the City, which was not

          3  in place prior to 9/11, but because of the

          4  continuing threat we are providing additional

          5  security, whether it be bridges, airports, what have

          6  you, that wasn't in place relative to 9/11.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: When I spoke to

          8  FEMA, I was -- I believe you testified that the

          9  first 30 days you would get all the overtime, and

         10  then you said the next 60, but I believe you meant

         11  the next 30 for a 60 total, and then an additional

         12  15 days, making a total of 75?

         13                 MR. LARSON: You're correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's what I

         15  was told on the phone, that they had a 75-day cutoff

         16  date, which seemed pretty arbitrary in its setting.

         17  Now you're saying that after that 75 days, what is

         18  the procedure in place?

         19                 MR. LARSON: The procedure is that any

         20  overtime that's worked relative to the World Trade

         21  Center site for security related to the site will be

         22  documented and there will be a claim submitted to

         23  FEMA and they will reimburse us.

         24                 In fact, of the 52 million that I

         25  discussed, I believe about 27 million of that
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          2  represents the additional 15 days that we negotiated

          3  between the Police Department and FEMA, and the

          4  residual is for overtime that we actually documented

          5  was related to the site and was considered to be

          6  reimbursable.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mentioned,

          8  the figures you discussed were just regarding police

          9  overtime, so am I to assume now that all police

         10  overtime directly relating to September 11th, during

         11  that 75-day period has been reimbursed?

         12                 MR. LARSON: That's correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: There are no

         14  outstanding overtime requests during that 75-day

         15  period?

         16                 MR. LARSON: That's correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And none that

         18  you intend to make in the future for additional

         19  funds for that 75-day period?

         20                 MR. LARSON: None that I have received

         21  from the Police Department.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And just to sum

         23  up for the Committee, the Police Department submits

         24  its request to you, and then you do all the

         25  negotiating with FEMA, correct?
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          2                 MR. LARSON: It's actually the Police

          3  Department works with federal officials, they're

          4  referred to as Pacs (phonetic), and they go over

          5  what the guidelines and the procedures are and

          6  there's a process and discussion, and they prepare

          7  what's referred to as a PW, which in a sense is a

          8  claim. So, the Police Department works with a

          9  federal official assigned from FEMA to prepare the

         10  documentation. Once they've completed that

         11  documentation, it's submitted to the Office of

         12  Management and Budget, where we review it, it also

         13  goes to the Office of Emergency Management, and then

         14  from the Office of Emergency Management, it's

         15  formally submitted to SEMO, the State Emergency

         16  Management Office, and then on to FEMA, where it's

         17  acted upon.

         18                 But, throughout the process there is

         19  ongoing discussions on a regular basis, so it's not

         20  as if somebody just submitted a claim one day and

         21  you saw it for the first time. As the claims are

         22  being submitted and prepared, there's regular

         23  meetings, Office of Emergency Management and OMB

         24  meets with SEMO and FEMA staff on a weekly basis,

         25  there are agency designees in each of the agencies
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          2  who are responsible for preparing claims. There has

          3  been meetings of those officials with FEMA. We're

          4  set up briefings with them so they can go over the

          5  process and what have you. So, the actual claim is

          6  prepared by the agency, forwarded to OMB, OEM and on

          7  to the federal government.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We need to go a

          9  little bit out of order here. Council Member Yassky

         10  has a pressing meeting in his district, he would

         11  like to ask a question and then we'll take his votes

         12  on the resolutions and allow him to leave.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         14  much, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 And let me congratulate you on these

         16  two bills, they're very important and I commend your

         17  leadership for doing them.

         18                 I just have one quick question. Is

         19  the FEMA, is the amount that FEMA has available to

         20  reimburse New York City for its September

         21  11th-related expenses a fixed amount?

         22                 MR. LARSON: No. There is an amount

         23  that's in the federal appropriation bill, but their

         24  obligation is to basically reimburse us for what our

         25  costs are. So, it shouldn't be limited.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Is there a

          3  maximum amount as to what that can be?

          4                 MR. LARSON: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 Mr. Chairman, as you explained, and I

          8  apologize to the members of the Committee and to the

          9  witness, I do have a pressing obligation in my

         10  district that I must attend to, is it possible for

         11  me to record a vote ahead of time?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, it is, and

         13  we will get that done right now.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Yassky.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I vote aye on

         17  both resolutions before us today.

         18                 Thank you, again, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         20  Council Member.

         21                 Council Members all have questions.

         22  Before we get to that, though, we were discussing

         23  overtime, the numbers you gave for additional funds

         24  which you've received apparently don't reflect any

         25  full-time normal gross, and I said that the number
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          2  in February was 181 million at full-time normal

          3  gross, and obviously that means regular pay, for

          4  anyone in the public who's here, if we had 50

          5  officers who would normally be working one day, and

          6  we had 250 working nine to five on September 12th,

          7  under the FEMA Guidelines as they exist, that is not

          8  reimbursable.

          9                 If you would, as you did for the

         10  overtime, please discuss for us the guidelines, as

         11  you understand them, for the full-time normal gross

         12  pay.

         13                 MR. LARSON: My understanding of the

         14  Guidelines is that what they, FEMA and the federal

         15  government referred to as force work is not

         16  reimbursable for FEMA funds. Which means that for

         17  the work that would have normally been -- for people

         18  who were normally scheduled to be at work, who

         19  worked during the event, the federal guidelines do

         20  not allow for reimbursement. We have had ongoing

         21  discussions with FEMA, we've expressed to them that

         22  we think there's extenuating circumstances why some

         23  of this force work should be reimbursed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, we happen

         25  to agree with you there.
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          2                 MR. LARSON: Yes, I think we are in

          3  agreement. And we've been making those arguments

          4  with FEMA. We have ongoing discussions and we're

          5  hopeful we will make some progress in that area, but

          6  as of yet I haven't got an official response that

          7  they're going to reimburse us for those costs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, frankly,

          9  that's why we're here today, and, again, we want to

         10  work with you, but we are astounded that FEMA has

         11  used these archaic guidelines to deny us money

         12  that's rightfully ours. We're not going begging with

         13  our hat in our hands to Washington, this is our

         14  money. We bore the brunt of this attack, and we

         15  agree with you that this is money that needs to be

         16  reimbursed.

         17                 Now, would you then agree that with

         18  regards to the overtime, especially now that it's

         19  full-time normal gross pay, that these guidelines

         20  need to be changed in order to fully reimburse New

         21  York City for the costs incurred through September

         22  11th?

         23                 MR. LARSON: That's the position that

         24  we've been taking, and that's the argument that

         25  we've made with FEMA.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If I may, again,

          3  I'm dumbfounded by FEMA's refusal to reimburse us

          4  for what is clearly, legitimately 9/11-related

          5  expenses, especially in this time of a budget

          6  deficit, a close to a $5 billion gap, which we're

          7  looking to close, this is, I think we said,

          8  including other agencies close to a half a billion

          9  dollars.

         10                 Commissioner Kelly testified that on

         11  a daily basis there are 470 police officers, still

         12  as we sit here, doing 9/11-related duty at Fresh

         13  Kills, at the Landfills, at the World Trade Center

         14  site, in addition to another 480 police officers who

         15  are doing enhanced security at bridges and posts

         16  like that, that would not have existed prior to

         17  September 11th. That adds up to close to 1,000

         18  police officers a day.

         19                 What is your status with your

         20  negotiations with FEMA regarding these ongoing costs

         21  that have not yet been incurred, and are being

         22  incurred as we speak?

         23                 MR. LARSON: The status is that we

         24  informed both FEMA and other federal officials that

         25  we think this is the problem, that we believe it
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          2  should be reimbursed, that they need to take a

          3  broader approach to things, and the response that

          4  we've received is that they understand our arguments

          5  and that they're taking it under consideration and

          6  hopefully we'll get some kind of a response

          7  relatively soon.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You said

          9  relatively soon, is there a deadline that they've

         10  given you, or a timeline that you're working on?

         11  Because as we said, you're submitting your budget

         12  Wednesday, we've submitted our response to your

         13  Preliminary Budget, we have co-equal budgetary

         14  responsibilities and we need to know how much is

         15  going to wind up being financed through the TFA,

         16  and, you know, we need to know what the status of

         17  your negotiations are, and we need to do better,

         18  both of us do, than we'll see what FEMA will do.

         19  What is he status exactly of these negotiations?

         20                 MR. LARSON: In the Executive Budget

         21  that we'll be submitted this next week, I expect

         22  that we will still be presenting that about $150

         23  million of straight time will be funded out of TFA

         24  rather than FEMA, since we won't have any kind of

         25  affirmative response on that otherwise.
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          2                 However, there is the other proposal

          3  that we're actively working with FEMA and SEMO to

          4  use hazard mitigation funds to provide us operating

          5  support, which was part of the February Financial

          6  Plan.

          7                 In that proposal we have said to the

          8  State and the federal government that we would like

          9  to do something different with hazard mitigation.

         10                 Normally hazard mitigation in FEMA

         11  programs are associated with hard capital items,

         12  because FEMA is generally structured to deal with a

         13  natural disaster, not an attack, and they're

         14  normally using those funds for types of things like

         15  reinforcing bridges, dams, dikes, and what have you.

         16  And we suggested to FEMA and SEMO that we would like

         17  to take what would be normally provided to the City

         18  for Hazard Mitigation Funds and use it as operating

         19  aid, and that we, the City, would then propose to

         20  the extent that we need to do more fixed

         21  capital-oriented things, that we would look

         22  hopefully to the City's capital budget to do those

         23  types of things and use hazard mitigation funds as a

         24  way of supporting the City's operation.

         25                 We've received a comment from both

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  the State and federal government that this is

          3  something that they would seriously look at, and, in

          4  fact, it's reflected in our current forecast that

          5  we'll be able to do that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We would support

          7  any effort to get us money that we're due through

          8  the Hazard Mitigation Fund, however, right now I see

          9  no reason why FEMA shouldn't give us this money

         10  directly.

         11                 And I have many more questions, but

         12  let me first ask some other Council Members who are

         13  dying to ask some questions on this issue.

         14                 First, Council Member Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Larson,

         16  thank you for joining us here today.

         17                 I would like to clarify some things.

         18  The Chairman has asked a whole bunch of questions,

         19  he's been living this I think for the last few

         20  weeks, as I know you have, but I do need some

         21  clarification, and excuse me if it seems to simplify

         22  the issue, but I hope to get a really good

         23  understanding, not only for myself but for anyone

         24  here that's listening that has an interest.

         25                 How much money has been spent on
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          2  overtime by the Police Department because of 9/11?

          3                 You remember we're all on the same

          4  page, we want to get the money back.

          5                 MR. LARSON: I don't have that number

          6  in front of me. I can get it and provide it to the

          7  Committee.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The latest

          9  figures that you might have.

         10                 MR. LARSON: I wouldn't be comfortable

         11  doing it from my memory.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You don't even

         13  have an approximation?

         14                 I mean, if $98 million was apparently

         15  going to be reimbursed by FEMA in overtime expenses,

         16  do you have any idea what kind of percentage that

         17  would be?

         18                 According to our Preliminary Budget

         19  hearings, we seem to estimate about $295 million,

         20  which is directly related to the World Trade Center

         21  attack in overtime; does that sound approximately

         22  correct?

         23                 MR. LARSON: I would say it's probably

         24  a little high but not drastically out of line, I

         25  would probably have said 250, but I'd really need to
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          2  go back and check numbers.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. So about

          4  $250 million was spent in overtime by the Police

          5  Department approximately?

          6                 MR. LARSON: That's reimbursable.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

          8                 And do we have any idea how much we

          9  spent in overtime as the City of New York that's not

         10  reimbursable?

         11                 MR. LARSON: In total?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And, again, this

         13  brings up the question of the Chairman's question

         14  about what is reimbursable in the standards.

         15                 MR. LARSON: Non-reimbursable overtime

         16  we're estimating it to be about $87 million,

         17  therefore, most of it is in the Police Department.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, the Police

         19  Department has spent about $87 million extra that's

         20  not reimbursable --

         21                 MR. LARSON: No --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: -- By the

         23  federal government in overtime?

         24                 MR. LARSON: I'm sorry. Eighty-seven

         25  is the City number, it would be about the 50 million
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          2  that's the Police Department.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But 87 million

          4  is the amount the City has paid out for overtime

          5  since 9/11 that is not even considered a possibility

          6  of being reimbursed by the federal government?

          7                 MR. LARSON: Has paid out or will pay

          8  out during the fiscal year.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Or will pay out.

         10                 Okay, the $98.3 million in overtime

         11  expenses that is FEMA reimbursable, how much more

         12  did you say there was, 47 million?

         13                 MR. LARSON: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         15                 Do you know how much more money the

         16  expenses would be than the $181 million that is

         17  apparently reimbursable under FEMA?

         18                 I'm sorry, that the TFA is going to

         19  reimburse?

         20                 MR. LARSON: I'm sorry?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: According to

         22  your testimony, $181 million of expenses for the

         23  World Trade Center happened, right, because of 9/11?

         24  That is being paid for by TFA?

         25                 MR. LARSON: The 181 is not a familiar
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          2  number. I'm sorry.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: In your

          4  testimony it says $181 million of expenses for the

          5  World Trade Center-related police full-time normal

          6  gross will be funded by the Transitional Financial

          7  Authority.

          8                 MR. LARSON: Okay, 181 was the

          9  estimate that's in the February plan, that is now

         10  150.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's now 150.

         12                 And that's being paid for by TFA?

         13                 MR. LARSON: That's correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Is that a loan,

         15  or is that direct payment by the State?

         16                 MR. LARSON: That is City borrowing.

         17  We're actually taking on debt.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right. So,

         19  just to put in perspective for me, or for the

         20  Committee, we have about $87 million that we are

         21  paying in overtime, that the City is paying out,

         22  that is not even considered a possibility of being

         23  reimbursed by the federal government?

         24                 MR. LARSON: I don't want to say --

         25  they're actually considering it. They haven't as of
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          2  yet given us any final determination. We're still

          3  pressing them, which is why we support the

          4  resolution --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right, of

          6  course.

          7                 MR. LARSON: They haven't emphatically

          8  said no. We're still working with them and we hope

          9  that we can encourage them to reimburse us for those

         10  costs.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the $181

         12  million from TFA we're going to have to repay?

         13                 MR. LARSON: The $150 million.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: At some point

         15  that goes into our debt?

         16                 MR. LARSON: That's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Was there any

         18  more money you said that we're taking from TFA?

         19                 MR. LARSON: Actually, the total TFA

         20  number is about $500 million across all agencies for

         21  all expenses that are not -- are expenses related to

         22  the World Trade Center event in some way which are

         23  not being reimbursed by FEMA. That's beyond what

         24  we're talking about for the Police Department, but

         25  the Citywide number is about 500 million.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So is that $500

          3  million that we are borrowing as part of TFA, part

          4  of the $1.5 billion that the Mayor has accounted for

          5  in his budget?

          6                 MR. LARSON: That's what it is. That

          7  500 goes go cover expenses, and a billion dollars

          8  goes to cover lost revenues.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I think it's

         10  important that the people of the City of New York

         11  really have that knowledge, that the $1.5 billion

         12  that the Mayor wants to borrow is a one-time

         13  borrowing from the State, is $500 million directly

         14  related to the World Trade Center due to 9/11.

         15                 MR. LARSON: It's not borrowing from

         16  the State.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right, from the

         18  TFA.

         19                 MR. LARSON: The City is issuing the

         20  debt itself.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right, from the

         22  TFA.

         23                 MR. LARSON: It got legal authority

         24  from the State to go out and do borrowing to cover

         25  operating expenses.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I apologize. So,

          3  one-shot borrowing deal.

          4                 Well, I appreciate it, and I hope

          5  that you appreciate that we are trying as best we

          6  can to get as much reimbursement from the federal

          7  government. We have taken on a great expense here in

          8  the City of New York, which your testimony

          9  indicates. Actually it has taken on a lot more

         10  spending in the City of New York that I even

         11  realized before this day, so I do appreciate you

         12  coming here and I look forward to working with you

         13  on it.

         14                 MR. LARSON: I look forward to working

         15  with you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         17  Council Member Katz.

         18                 And you're 100 percent right,

         19  one-third of the debt that we anticipate financing,

         20  which affects our rating, which affects our budget,

         21  is money that we're due yesterday. And that's why we

         22  need this hearing, and that's why the Council is

         23  doing its job today, to shed some light on this.

         24  You're a Council member, I respectfully submit I

         25  just found out about this because I'm Chairman of
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          2  this Committee, even the Council members aren't

          3  aware of what's going on on the other side of the

          4  hall, it may be good, it may not be, but we need to

          5  know, the City needs to know, the people need to

          6  know, that one-third of this debt that we're

          7  speaking about is our money, which we should all be

          8  fighting for together, and we look forward to

          9  helping you do that.

         10                 You said that the full-time normal

         11  gross, that Melinda Katz asked you about, went down

         12  from 181 million to 150 million, that's a 31 million

         13  difference, and yet they haven't reimbursed us any;

         14  why did that happen?

         15                 MR. LARSON: The 181 was a forecast of

         16  expenses incurred and projected to happen. Since the

         17  February Financial Plan, the Police Department's

         18  estimate of their full-time normal growth relative

         19  to the event came down $30 million, so it's that

         20  we're spending probably $30 million less than what

         21  we thought we were going to. Because these numbers

         22  are projections through the end of this fiscal year,

         23  they're not all necessarily expenses incurred to

         24  date.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me first
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          2  recognize we've been joined by Council Member Hiram

          3  Monserrate and Council Member Allan Jennings, and go

          4  to questions from Council Member Phil Reed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you very

          6  much, Mr. Chair. This is really a statement, and I'm

          7  just echoing what so many of us feel and wanted to

          8  applaud you in this diligence. I think this is a

          9  very important issue, obviously. You know, I don't

         10  want to say I've made fun, but I've had some fun

         11  with you about this, but I do think that it is

         12  critically important we get, in the time of our

         13  budget crisis, that we get all the money that is due

         14  to us and that there be an awareness of what is

         15  happening, and what the impact is really is a result

         16  in our communities, which are being affected by

         17  9/11, and so, so much of this focus that I'm hearing

         18  about we have to rebuild downtown, we have to do

         19  everything on this four square block area, as tragic

         20  as that was, the results of that, the consequences,

         21  the impact of cutting programs passes all through

         22  the City into every one of our districts, not the

         23  least of which is if we are having to cut back on

         24  the police, and, so, our constituents see that. And

         25  I want to thank you, Mr. Chair, for not only
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          2  bringing this out consistently, but also putting the

          3  numbers together and focusing this Committee's

          4  attention and I think the City and the

          5  Administration on not rolling over, because there's

          6  going to be ongoing cost, the question that Council

          7  Member Yassky asked, if this was any sort of

          8  hurricane, they wouldn't put a cap on these things.

          9  And, so, it does help that we create a definition.

         10  So, I just wanted to thank you very much for the

         11  work, and you can always expect my support in this

         12  area.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

         14  that, Council member.

         15                 Council Member Reed is chairman of

         16  our Consumer Affairs Committee, and all of us are

         17  either members or chairs that sit on other

         18  committees where this testimony has arisen, and you

         19  mentioned that the total amount was $500 million,

         20  approximately, in TFA finance debt. Now, again, I

         21  sit on Governmental Operations, and one of the

         22  things that has not been remimbursed amazingly is

         23  the cost of the new election, which was postponed

         24  due to the September 11th; what other costs can you

         25  tell us about right now that are outstanding, which
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          2  you believe to be properly reimbursable by FEMA

          3  which have not been reimbursed?

          4                 MR. LARSON: The largest cost is in

          5  the area of straight time. I would say in addition

          6  to what we're talking about for the Police

          7  Department, there's probably in excess of another

          8  $50 million in other City agencies.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Such as Fire

         10  Department?

         11                 MR. LARSON: Fire would be included in

         12  there, it also includes Sanitation, DDC, DOT, I

         13  think we have some very strong arguments for getting

         14  reimbursement in some of those areas and have had

         15  positive feedback, but not an authorization yet that

         16  they're going to reimburse us.

         17                 We also have a large Medicaid

         18  expense, we're estimating to be about $120 million,

         19  because of the events of 9/11. The process and the

         20  guidelines for applying for Medicaid were

         21  substantially loosened up, and as a result there is

         22  a large hit to the City's expense budget, and we are

         23  arguing that we believe that that's related to the

         24  9/11 event because of the actions we had to take to

         25  allow people to be covered.
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          2                 We didn't want to have the event

          3  prevent people who would have otherwise been

          4  eligible for care and health coverage not get it, so

          5  as a result, the costs were about 120 million more.

          6                 As you mentioned, we're aggressively

          7  proceeding after the costs of the primarily

          8  election, which is 10 or $11 million. Those are the

          9  major costs. There are, you know, other costs

         10  throughout the City that we're pressing for, but

         11  those would be the big ticket items.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This full-time,

         13  straight-time cost that you mentioned, the 50

         14  million, those have been denied, I assume, for the

         15  same reasons the Police Department full-time,

         16  straight time has been denied, because they just

         17  don't fit the guidelines right now?

         18                 MR. LARSON: I wouldn't say they've

         19  been denied yet, because we haven't actually

         20  submitted the claim because we're actively

         21  negotiating with them to prepare a claim that

         22  they'll agree to pay. So, there has not been a claim

         23  submitted and denied, but there's negotiations,

         24  discussions, exchanges going on, where we're making

         25  our arguments as to why we believe that these costs
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          2  should be reimbursed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, I'm sure

          4  that that's the action that you deem best able to

          5  retrieve this money for us. I'm a little surprised

          6  that no claim has been made yet.

          7                 I'm going to assume that you're going

          8  to make a claim for the full amount that you believe

          9  should be reimbursed, and not any less, because of

         10  negotiations with --

         11                 MR. LARSON: That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: -- The federal

         13  government, and we will have ongoing hearings on

         14  that, should that not happen.

         15                 If the federal government does not

         16  give you what you and the members of this Committee

         17  believe to be rightfully related to September 11th,

         18  what is your contingency plan other than borrowing

         19  the money?

         20                 MR. LARSON: The contingency plan, if

         21  we don't get reimbursement, is to borrow money.

         22                 We're aggressively going after the

         23  money, as far as the negotiations that we're having

         24  with the federal authorities, and we've presented

         25  them with, you know, numerous arguments, some of
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          2  which are making a certain degree of progress.

          3                 They have given us very favorable

          4  indication that they're inclined without having to

          5  change guidelines to reimburse us for some costs

          6  that we can clearly make the argument as incremental

          7  to what our normal operations would have been.

          8                 For example, to the extent that I

          9  have employees of Design and Construction who are

         10  monitoring and controlling the work on the site, who

         11  normally would have been funded out of the capital

         12  budget, they're working on straight time. That would

         13  be an incremental cost to the City's budget. While I

         14  haven't as of yet got the final indication to go

         15  forward, but I've given all indications that they

         16  would likely reimburse us for that cost. They would

         17  likely reimburse us for some of the costs in the

         18  Department of Transportation, where we have people

         19  working straight time, driving trucks that we might

         20  have otherwise been able to contract out.

         21                 I've got some strong arguments about

         22  employees who are working in the Department of

         23  Sanitation, who probably wouldn't have been there

         24  because we were closing the landfill, but they were

         25  kept in those assignments because they were needed
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          2  there to take care of the debris from the World

          3  Trade Center.

          4                 So, on the spectrum of things we've

          5  been given some very positive feedback about getting

          6  reimbursed for those costs that I can make an

          7  argument as a direct incremental cost to our budget.

          8                 I'm attempting to also do some of the

          9  same things relative to the Police Department with

         10  the Police Department budget. We're not there yet,

         11  but we're still making those arguments.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We realize on

         13  this Committee that you're working closely, your

         14  Administration, with a Republican Governor and a

         15  Republican President, and the need to, let's say

         16  mince your words. It's not lost on us, though, the

         17  fact that you're using words like probably wouldn't

         18  have been there other than the September 11th - we

         19  know they wouldn't have been there other than

         20  September 11th; and that you could make an argument

         21  - yes, you can make the argument, we will make it

         22  for you should you not. But, again, we want to work

         23  together with you. These are not costs which we

         24  believe should be negotiated. It's very clear what's

         25  related to September 11th and what's not. Again, we
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          2  understand you're in a different situation than we

          3  are, and you're doing these negotiations. I'm not

          4  sure we fully support the fact that no claim has

          5  been made. I'm sure other Council members have

          6  questions about that, so let me first go to

          7  Subcommittee Chair James Davis.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 I want to make it very clear that I

         11  am outraged that FEMA hasn't stepped to the plate,

         12  but in all fairness to FEMA, I am concerned with

         13  whether or not we're just making the best argument.

         14  Are we failing to make it clear that this overtime

         15  is directly related to 9/11? Is it FEMA's concern

         16  that we are now trying to get monies and we're using

         17  it for other police-related initiatives, and that is

         18  outside of 9/11, and that's why they're hesitant to

         19  give us the monies? Could that be their concern?

         20                 MR. LARSON: Their concern, and I hate

         21  to speak for FEMA, I wish they could speak for

         22  themselves, is that what we call enhanced security

         23  is something that has happened nationwide and,

         24  therefore, whether you would go to Los Angeles or

         25  Chicago or what have you, they're also doing
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          2  enhanced security measures, and they're responsible

          3  for dealing with those costs that they perceive as

          4  being related to the fact that the event took place

          5  here in New York City. And clearly, we have a lot of

          6  costs that relate to the fact that this event took

          7  place here in New York City, however, there are some

          8  of those costs that they would say are not unlike

          9  those costs that are being incurred in major cities

         10  across the country, and while they seem to indicate

         11  that they appreciate that those costs are taking

         12  place, they're not part of what their direct charge

         13  and the Stafford Act allows them to do.

         14                 So, as a result of that, you know,

         15  our pleas are not simply with FEMA, but they are

         16  with the federal government in total, relative to

         17  the funds that are available as part of the $20

         18  billion that's being made available to deal with

         19  this event.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Now, let me,

         21  because I agree with you and I want to make it clear

         22  that this is not coming from you, this is coming

         23  from me.

         24                 MR. LARSON: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Again, FEMA,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  common sense, we are here in the City of New York --

          3  you can't say that, I can -- we are here in the City

          4  of New York, as a retired police officer, security

          5  is paramount here in the City of New York. This is

          6  where the attack took place, here.

          7                 And I want to know, and I know you're

          8  doing all that you can --

          9                 MR. LARSON: I think I've said all

         10  those words and more.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: What?

         12                 MR. LARSON: I think I've said all

         13  those words and more myself in conversations with

         14  FEMA.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: I know, you're

         16  in a sensitive situation.

         17                 The City must submit individual time

         18  sheets, data referred to as detailed costs

         19  reimbursements approach. We are doing everything on

         20  our part to make the argument, to the best of your

         21  knowledge?

         22                 MR. LARSON: We're making very strong

         23  arguments at every level.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Okay, then I

         25  have made it absolutely clear that we would like to
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          2  be a part of the process, and that's why we thank

          3  our Chairman Vallone for, and we thank you also for

          4  testifying. But, again, FEMA, use common sense, the

          5  City right now needs, deserves, requires the money.

          6  Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. LARSON: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          9  Chairman Davis.

         10                 Council Member Golden.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 I, too, think you're doing a

         14  fantastic job, but I understand where my colleagues

         15  are coming from, there is no other City in this

         16  country that was attacked. It's not an event, it's

         17  an act of war, an act of aggression and this paid

         18  its highest price it could have possibly paid, and

         19  that's the lost of the almost 3,000 people.

         20                 The past experience with FEMA, I

         21  think you send in a figure to FEMA, I guess we work

         22  through the coordinating officer, is it? We have a

         23  federal coordinating officer that's assigned to the

         24  site?

         25                 MR. LARSON: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And that

          3  individual assesses the cost. You make a submission

          4  for dollars, and I guess it's the coordinating

          5  officer that agrees or disagrees?

          6                 MR. LARSON: At the end of the day, if

          7  it needs to go to that level. But most things are

          8  taken care of well before it gets to that level.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: But he would

         10  be the final say, the coordinating officer?

         11                 MR. LARSON: The final say at FEMA,

         12  before we go some place else.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Is there --

         14                 MR. LARSON: There's always the White

         15  House.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Okay. And you

         17  seem to get most of your results before you even get

         18  as far as the coordinating officer, but when you do

         19  get there, most of these are being met, most of the

         20  costs in the past?

         21                 MR. LARSON: We've gotten very

         22  favorable decisions on many claims, from the federal

         23  Coordinating Office. There clearly on their part is

         24  an understanding, this is a very special event, and

         25  that they need to look at the guidelines and rules
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          2  to try to make them as helpful to us as possible, so

          3  while I have disagreements with them and I continue

          4  to pursue certain areas, I have to say that there

          5  are many claims that we've made where they have gone

          6  the extra mile to help us fit our need into

          7  regulations that were designed for a natural

          8  disaster.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: So then we

         10  would move, if you get a no, you would move into

         11  when there's an appeal process, I guess. There's not

         12  a --

         13                 MR. LARSON: We've taken a tact that

         14  for the most part we're trying to -- they have told

         15  us, and they've showed most ways that they are

         16  trying to be helpful in working through the federal

         17  regulations such that we can get as much

         18  reimbursement as we possibly can to assist us with

         19  this event.

         20                 What we're focusing on here today are

         21  on a couple of the big ticket items where we

         22  continue to have levels of disagreement with them,

         23  but prior to getting to that level, we've worked

         24  through a couple hundred claims that have been filed

         25  which when the initial federal official did the
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          2  review, they came up with the standard reasons why

          3  you can't do this or what have you, and as we worked

          4  with the federal officials, we've been able to get

          5  generally full reimbursement for our cost, and we've

          6  gotten some fairly favorable decisions from them.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: So you feel

          8  that the legislation coming out of here today will

          9  be helpful in the negotiation process?

         10                 MR. LARSON: Yes. I think, you know,

         11  we're asking them to continue to, you know, be

         12  cognizant this is a very special event that they're

         13  dealing with, and to go as far as they possibly can

         14  with the regulations and the laws that they have and

         15  that we would hope that when we would reach a point

         16  that they can't go any farther, that they're not the

         17  end all in the federal government, and there may be

         18  other ways that they can help us with, or reimburse

         19  us with our cost.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I'm going to

         21  go into another area. There is an estimated cost, I

         22  guess, for the completion of this year that you put

         23  some figures to that? I presume that there is some

         24  type of figure for an estimated cost through June

         25  30th of this year for 2002, and I presume there's
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          2  probably a cost attributed to 2003 as well, both in

          3  non-reimbursable, and reimbursables; would you have

          4  those figures?

          5                 MR. LARSON: Rough numbers, and

          6  they'll be refined as we work along, the total cost

          7  I think for 2002 will be about $2.2 billion to the

          8  City's Expense Budget.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Reimbursable

         10  or non?

         11                 MR. LARSON: Total cost.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Okay.

         13                 MR. LARSON: And I expect that as

         14  things stand now, and I say as things stand now,

         15  there would be about 500 million of that which would

         16  not be reimbursed, and that is basically, for the

         17  most part those issues we're talking about here

         18  today, straight time and some overtime issues. And

         19  in combined with $120 million in Medicaid that we

         20  talked about, those are the big ticket items that

         21  make up that 500.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And that's

         23  total cost of 2002?

         24                 MR. LARSON: 2.2.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: But 2002?
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          2                 MR. LARSON: That's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And for 2003?

          4                 MR. LARSON: The numbers are much

          5  smaller. Probably less than $100 million in the

          6  Expense Budget, and then some significant costs in

          7  the capital budget, maybe a couple of hundred. But I

          8  would be very hesitant about putting any certainty

          9  on capital budget costs since we still don't know

         10  exactly everything we have to replace and what we

         11  have to do.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Under a

         13  billion for 2000 -- over a billion for 2003?

         14                 MR. LARSON: Oh, we think

         15  significantly. We're talking probably, and again,

         16  100 million in the Expense Budget, 200 million in

         17  the Capital Budget.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: So, under 500

         19  million we're looking for, and refundable of that,

         20  or reimbursable of that, could possibly --

         21                 MR. LARSON: We're assuming most of

         22  that would be reimbursable.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Okay. So,

         24  we're looking at 300 million.

         25                 Is there any state focus as to
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          2  similar, like the federal Stafford Act, or is there

          3  any other laws that help us in the State to get the

          4  State dollars?

          5                 MR. LARSON: There's not much in State

          6  dollars that are available. There is State Emergency

          7  Management Office (SEMO) who is working with us, but

          8  their primary focus is to assist us in getting

          9  federal dollars.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And last

         11  question: we're still working within our guidelines

         12  for the $20 billion that's been assigned to New York

         13  State, we're not anywhere near reaching that goal

         14  yet, and we're not asking for money above and beyond

         15  the 20 million at this point?

         16                 MR. LARSON: No, we're not. We believe

         17  that we may at some point in time, think it would be

         18  appropriate to have some of that money reprogrammed

         19  into different areas to help us meet what our true

         20  needs are, but that's something, you know, down the

         21  road.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And when do

         23  you think you'll be doing that master plan for that?

         24                 MR. LARSON: I honestly can't give you

         25  an answer, but it's something that's evolving as we
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          2  go through and define what our costs and needs are.

          3                 My focus has been basically on the

          4  costs of September 11th directly on the City, and I

          5  believe that we have those pretty well defined now,

          6  and we will, we, the City of New York proper, will

          7  be pretty much finished with our costs in 2003. But

          8  what then rolls out from there is all of the

          9  development costs of the site, which there is a much

         10  longer term focus, and I'm as actively involved in

         11  the development process as to what's going on once

         12  the site is clean.

         13                 My focus has been getting the cost to

         14  basically deal with bringing the site back to a

         15  level which somebody can begin to do some type of

         16  development with it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: We're talking

         18  about infrastructure and everything else that goes

         19  into that.

         20                 MR. LARSON: That's correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I may add that

         22  if it's possible this be the proper committee, I

         23  know we're looking at the police overtime per se,

         24  you've pointed out other areas that need help, as

         25  well, and there is obviously, every agency is
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          2  probably touched somehow in the City of New York, so

          3  if there's a more global legislation that you'd want

          4  us to put together besides this piece of legislation

          5  that we presently have, if you could work with this,

          6  Peter Vallone here, I guess he's shown that he can

          7  do this and he can put together a good piece of

          8  legislation and we could be helpful in the future

          9  for other pieces of legislation as well.

         10                 MR. LARSON: Sure, we'd love to do

         11  that. In fact, we've had, and will continue to have,

         12  regular meetings with the Council staff on this

         13  issue. I think that my staff has had at least four

         14  meetings with members of the staff of this

         15  Committee, briefing them on the issues and the costs

         16  and the problems that have occurred, and I'm looking

         17  forward to continue doing that so that we can work

         18  together.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Director

         20  Larson, I enjoyed your conversation here today and

         21  your testimony, and you've done a great job. Thank

         22  you.

         23                 MR. LARSON: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         25  Councilman.
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          2                 Again, we need to go a little out of

          3  order, Council Member Reed has a pressing issue in

          4  his district and needs to vote on these two

          5  resolutions.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you. I

          8  vote aye on all. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         10  Council Member.

         11                 Let me go back to a basic question

         12  here for a second, because I think I've heard two

         13  different answers.

         14                 The FEMA money, is that the part of

         15  the federal relief package, the $20 billion, or not?

         16                 MR. LARSON: Yes, it is. But --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It is. So, if we

         18  don't --

         19                 MR. LARSON: But the way the federal

         20  statute reads relative to FEMA, if the costs of the

         21  event resulted in us spending more than the amount

         22  that was appropriated, they would have to do a

         23  supplemental appropriation bill to incur those

         24  costs. So, we're not limited to the $20 billion

         25  relative to FEMA. We're just one piece of the $20
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          2  billion.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We won't receive

          4  the $20 billion if we don't qualify, if we're deemed

          5  ineligible; correct?

          6                 MR. LARSON: The portion of it that's

          7  relative to FEMA, that is what is one of the biggest

          8  problems, and it's why I said that one of the things

          9  that we might look to do is to reprogram some of the

         10  money that's in FEMA to areas where the guidelines

         11  are much more conducive for us to get fully

         12  reimbursed. I think the objective is to make sure

         13  that we're fully reimbursed for our costs, and if

         14  that can be done by reprogramming money to another

         15  federal entity who would have less stricture, that

         16  would be one way of doing it.

         17                 On the other hand, we're continuing

         18  to press FEMA to reimburse us for as much as we

         19  possibly can within the regulations and statute that

         20  they have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think we're in

         22  agreement. Again, we're concerned you might have all

         23  said 100 trillion dollar limit for us, if you're not

         24  going to deem us eligible for the money.

         25                 Let me go to Council Member
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          2  Monserrate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 I have two questions. Was there any

          6  FEMA funding for the first attack on the World Trade

          7  Center a few years ago?

          8                 MR. LARSON: I honestly don't know the

          9  answer to that question. I wasn't involved at that

         10  time.

         11                 MR. MONSERRATE: And can you give us

         12  any other examples where the City of New York

         13  received FEMA funding?

         14                 MR. LARSON: Normally we receive FEMA

         15  funding that's relative to a major snowstorm or a

         16  major weather event, relative to, you know, flooding

         17  or issues like that, and FEMA and SEMO's guidelines

         18  and procedures are primarily set up for natural

         19  disasters, that's what they were put in place for.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay,

         21  thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         23  Council member. I think that's exactly why we're

         24  calling them to change these guidelines because they

         25  were set up for something that they're not dealing
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          2  with right now.

          3                 Council Member Foster.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

          5                 I'm sitting here just kind of

          6  puzzled. And, first of all, Mr. Larson, I thank you

          7  for being here, and especially you, Mr. Chairman, in

          8  putting this together.

          9                 But maybe it's just too simple,

         10  because I think that if any of us had thought that

         11  something like September 11th could happen, then we

         12  would have planned to prevent it. And, so, these

         13  FEMA guidelines, we don't fit, you're right, we

         14  don't fit the guidelines because we did not plan to

         15  be attacked by terrorists. And, so, while we know

         16  snow can happen and we understand acts of God, we

         17  don't understand acts of terrorism, and we're being

         18  put in a situation where eventually we're robbing

         19  Peter to pay Paul, and we're going to have to borrow

         20  money to pay, and we're continually incurring

         21  expenses by just trying to get money back. This, it

         22  seems simple that we should not have to beg for

         23  what's ours, and, again, it has an effect, like

         24  Chairperson -- I mean Council Member Reed said, it's

         25  not just Lower Manhattan, it's those people in my
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          2  district who clean the World Trade Center who

          3  haven't been able to find jobs and had to qualify

          4  for Medicaid under these emergency guidelines.

          5                 So, I just want to say, I applaud

          6  you, Mr. Chairman, that we have to do everything we

          7  can to get what's ours, and it's a shame that we

          8  have to do it in this way, because in the end we're

          9  incurring more expenses, instead of just, you know,

         10  cut the check already.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. I

         13  agree.

         14                 Council Member Jennings.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Good

         16  morning.

         17                 You stated earlier that FEMA's

         18  Guidelines are not set up for this type of terrorist

         19  attack situation, that it's not normal that they

         20  would cover this?

         21                 MR. LARSON: That's correct. Their

         22  primary focus has been on natural disasters,

         23  earthquakes, floods, snowstorms, weather events.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The scary

         25  thing that I'm thinking about, you know, it's a
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          2  scenario that can happen but we hope will never

          3  happen, some would-be terrorist walks into a

          4  restaurant downtown Manhattan with 50 people in it

          5  and blows themselves up, will we be covered? And of

          6  course we have to put officers and extra firemen out

          7  there and overtime on handling a situation like

          8  that. And, of course, we just had one situation,

          9  suppose in a given week we had three or four

         10  multiple situations like that, what would happen to

         11  the City of New York?

         12                 MR. LARSON: We certainly would reach

         13  out to the federal government to say that we would

         14  be looking for assistance. It would be up to the

         15  White House to make the determination that this was

         16  an event or disaster that they would declare, so

         17  they have to declare the event.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: If this

         19  event, say, for example, occurred on a subway, would

         20  you consider that an event that should be covered

         21  under FEMA?

         22                 MR. LARSON: If there was, you know, a

         23  significant terrorist attack that did --

         24  unfortunately, what we're looking for from FEMA is

         25  reimbursement for cost, it can't undo the damage to
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          2  the individuals involved. So, if there were

          3  significant costs associated with the event, we, the

          4  City, would reach out to the federal government and

          5  ask if they declare that this be a disaster that we

          6  would get reimbursed for, yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So, we could

          8  expect if an event like this occurred, hypothetical

          9  event which I described, which I hope would never

         10  happen, that occurred in a subway car, where the

         11  train is damaged, the station is damaged, with

         12  enough multiple Transit police and Fire, police

         13  overtime and in the Fire Department, can we expect

         14  to be fully covered in an incident like that?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think what

         16  would happen, Allan, unfortunately, is exactly what

         17  happens now, a terrorist attack will be covered for

         18  some things and not others, and we would disagree on

         19  what we got covered for, and this is what the

         20  purpose of this hearing is. You're exactly right,

         21  some of it would not be covered under these

         22  Guidelines and they need to be changed.

         23                 Any other questions?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We'll go to a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  second round of questions, Council Member Golden.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Real quick,

          4  and I think it's along the same lines that's being

          5  discussed presently by my colleague.

          6                 Is there any of our federal

          7  legislators in the process of drafting any type of

          8  legislation that would be considered different from

          9  that of FEMA, and considered that towards an act of

         10  war, such as terrorist attack -- obviously, too,

         11  being a terrorist attack being different than that

         12  of an act of war, obviously, but is there

         13  legislation being drafted by any of our colleagues

         14  here in the City or outside of our City?

         15                 MR. LARSON: I mean, there is the

         16  homeland security legislation that's being drafted,

         17  which would provide financial assistance by Senator

         18  Clinton.

         19                 I'm not really actively involved in

         20  monitoring legislation, so I don't know what other

         21  pieces of legislation are out there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And that

         23  homeland security, which is presently the -- what's

         24  this, the federal?

         25                 MR. LARSON: That would be federal
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          2  assistance, but that's across the country. That's to

          3  provide financial assistance for basically

          4  counter-terrorism.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: That's not for

          6  an act of aggression or anything like that, that's

          7  just for setting up a policy, it's not for

          8  distributing dollars after an event has happened?

          9                 MR. LARSON: Not after the event, it's

         10  to distribute dollars before an event happens to

         11  prevent it from happening.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: So, the event

         13  dollars after, so far for us to access for City of

         14  New York is only FEMA, and that's why I guess

         15  Senator Clinton is looking at some legislation, and

         16  that's the only one you know of presently?

         17                 MR. LARSON: That's the only one, but

         18  I'm really not the expert in that area. There could

         19  be a lot of stuff out there that I'm not

         20  knowledgeable about.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: That's

         22  something we may want to consider as a Committee to

         23  sit down with federal legislators, to see if we can

         24  have some legislation drafted that's outside the box

         25  that deals with special interests similar to this.
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          2  And the reason for it is, even though this is a

          3  great country, and there's many, many cities in it,

          4  the next act of aggression and terrorist attack is

          5  more than likely, if it's going to happen, it's

          6  going to happen in New York City because we are

          7  fortunately, and unfortunately, we are the capitol

          8  of the world, so we can definitely see future

          9  occurrences in this City and we should have a way of

         10  dealing with it outside the budgetary restraints of

         11  the City of New York, but with the assistance of

         12  federal dollars and designed specifically for that,

         13  and that's something to look at.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's a very

         15  good point, Council member. And I should add that we

         16  do have the full support of all of our federal

         17  legislators, Senator Clinton, Senator Schumer,

         18  Carolyn Maloney has sent a representative, and

         19  Homeland Security member Joe Crowley has also sent a

         20  statement, and as you said, they support, as we

         21  support, changing the Guidelines to fit this event

         22  into it, failing that perhaps some legislation would

         23  be necessary to tell Executive Branch that the

         24  Legislative Branch won't stand for this, and that's

         25  a very good point.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And I think it

          3  should be not just for this event, I think it's only

          4  a matter of time until the next event, and I think

          5  we have to prepare for the next event, and the

          6  sooner the better.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Davis.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Again, this is

         10  my final comment today on this matter, but, again,

         11  thank you so much for coming before us today.

         12                 I'm just concerned, and I know you

         13  said that you've done all that you can to make our

         14  argument.

         15                 MR. LARSON: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: I would ask

         17  that you go back and review the process and make

         18  sure that the underlings, the persons below you, are

         19  making sure we're doing everything to make the best

         20  argument.

         21                 Today in Washington, D.C. there are

         22  many persons who are marching in support of Israel.

         23  There's also been other marches on Washington, "Me

         24  and Men March, Me and Family March, Me and Women

         25  March," I'm wondering what is necessary to send a
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          2  clear message to FEMA that the City of New York

          3  needs this money. Maybe perhaps in addition to

          4  resolutions, maybe we need to get everybody on

          5  board, all of our unions, the PBA, the Fire

          6  Officers, everyone on board, and maybe it will take

          7  us to go to Washington, D.C. and allow them to see

          8  the City of New York outraged, in need, and the part

          9  that really upsets me more than anything else is

         10  because it appears that FEMA can't see to suggest

         11  that other states who did not suffer the disaster of

         12  the World Trade Center, other states who Police

         13  Officers and Fire Officers did not perish in the

         14  World Trade Center, and thousands of persons, is

         15  outrageous to me. And, again, I thank you for all

         16  that you're doing. Anything that this Council could

         17  do, and maybe we have to bring all forces together

         18  to send the loudest, clearest message, use common

         19  sense, federal government, we need you more so than

         20  ever. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         22  Council member.

         23                 There are no more questions from

         24  Council members, so let me just sum up, finish your

         25  testimony by stating that I think I speak for our
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          2  entire Committee and our entire City Council when I

          3  say we'd like you to bring this message to FEMA for

          4  us. We are outraged, as Council Member Davis said,

          5  that the money has been denied. The federal

          6  government has failed in its responsibility to

          7  protect New York, and now we will not let them fail

          8  in its responsibility to make us whole.

          9                 We thank you for your time today,

         10  your enlightening testimony, and we look forward to

         11  working with you again in the future.

         12                 MR. LARSON: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         14                 The next witness will be a

         15  representative from Congresswoman Carolyn Maloney's

         16  office, who will read a brief statement. I call Keli

         17  Goff.

         18                 Welcome. Thank you for coming today.

         19                 MS. GOFF: Hi there. Good morning. Can

         20  everyone hear me? Okay, good morning. First of all,

         21  I'd like to thank Chairman Vallone, as well as the

         22  rest of the City Council, for welcoming us here

         23  today to discuss very important resolutions.

         24                 Let me start by saying that, we're

         25  just here today -- thank you for allowing me, again,
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          2  to testify on behalf of Congresswoman Maloney, who

          3  represents the 14th Congressional District in New

          4  York City, as well as Astoria, about the importance

          5  of our law enforcement community, especially in the

          6  wake of the September 11th terrorist attack.

          7                 The New York City Police Department

          8  acted with unquestionable bravery and courage during

          9  those terrifying moments on September 11th. In the

         10  wake of unprecedented chaos and destruction,

         11  thousands of officers pulled victims to safety, and

         12  led others away from the scene. They have worked

         13  tirelessly in the months since that tragedy to

         14  ensure that the City remains safe for New Yorkers

         15  and for visitors.

         16                 Unfortunately, the extraordinary

         17  costs associated with this effort have placed a

         18  severe burden on the New York Police Department.

         19  Estimates place these costs at $98.3 million in

         20  police overtime, and $181 million in normal

         21  full-time expenses.

         22                 I am disappointed to learn that FEMA

         23  has deemed these expenses to be ineligible for

         24  reimbursement. It seems that this behavior has

         25  become a pattern with FEMA, as New York University,
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          2  the New York City Board of Education, and others in

          3  need of aid have experienced great difficulties in

          4  obtaining help.

          5                 I have been working with the other

          6  members of the New York City Congressional

          7  Delegation to meet with FEMA Director Allbaugh to

          8  find resolutions to this situation.

          9                 Additionally, the COPS Program has

         10  been invaluable to assisting communities across the

         11  nation to improve public safety and to reduce crime.

         12                 In the wake of the September 11th

         13  attack, the need for COPS has become even more

         14  evident.

         15                 America's homeland security efforts

         16  depend upon the additional law enforcement that COPS

         17  provides.

         18                 The resources that the New York City

         19  Police Department have received under the COPS

         20  program since 1994 has enabled the Department to

         21  hire thousands of additional police officers who

         22  help to make New York City streets safer.

         23                 Community policing is key to

         24  decreasing the crime rate; however, the Department

         25  now may lose its critical funding when the need for
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          2  additional law enforcement is even greater.

          3                 While I am heartened by the efforts

          4  of the federal government to assist New York City,

          5  clearly more must be done.

          6                 September 11th was an unprecedented

          7  moment in our history. The terrorists thought that

          8  they could make America weaker. Their actions only

          9  served to unite Americans and to make this nation

         10  stronger.

         11                 We must continue to show our resolve

         12  by working together to rebuild New York. I

         13  wholeheartedly support these resolutions which call

         14  upon the federal government to assist the New York

         15  City Police Department for its expenses related to

         16  the attack on the World Trade Center and to ensure

         17  that all citizens of New York City are kept safe.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you very

         19  much. And coming from a representative of a former

         20  Council member it means even more, Ms. Maloney.

         21                 Are there any questions? Bring our

         22  best wishes to the Congresswoman.

         23                 MS. GOFF: Will do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And we thank her

         25  for her support, and we thank you for coming down
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          2  today.

          3                 MS. GOFF: Thank you so much for

          4  having me.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're going to

          6  quickly sum up a statement sent to us by Congressman

          7  Joe Crowley, who is a member of the Homeland

          8  Security Committee in support of these resolutions.

          9                 He begins by expressing his support

         10  for the work of this Committee, "great work of this

         11  Committee, to reduce the crime of the City," and of

         12  course that has to go into my summary.

         13                 He wants to express his deep

         14  gratitude to us for drafting these two resolutions,

         15  which he's completely supportive of.

         16                 Again, I'm going to summarize. He

         17  says "let me assure you that I will not only support

         18  the FEMA resolution first, but I will take this to

         19  the entire New York Delegation and work for language

         20  in the upcoming Supplemental Appropriations Bill,

         21  which I expect to fund additional redevelopment and

         22  clean-up in Manhattan, as well as homeland security

         23  and national defense to include this important

         24  provision," and I think that's something Council

         25  Member Golden was alluding to, there is some
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          2  legislation apparently on hand.

          3                 Regarding the COPS bill, he says "the

          4  facts show that COPS funding flowing into our City

          5  has worked and cannot be stopped. Additionally, even

          6  with the smaller police force these federal funds

          7  are supplementing not supplanting City funds to hire

          8  and train new officers."

          9                 In conclusion, he applauds the

         10  actions of this Committee to draft these two

         11  important resolutions, and urges their strong and

         12  swift passage. And we thank Congressman Crowley for

         13  those remarks.

         14                 Senators Clinton and Schumer have

         15  also supported these two resolutions. Senator

         16  Clinton has sent some words saying that "national

         17  security begins at a local level, and this means

         18  making sure that our local law enforcement officers,

         19  who are the front lines of our defense against

         20  crime, have the resources necessary."

         21                 In 1994, and "since 1994, New York

         22  State has been able to hire an additional 11,768 law

         23  enforcement officers through more than 783 million

         24  in COPS grants. This has put 100,000 new cops on the

         25  street in the State and 114,000 nationwide."
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          2                 She says she's working with the

          3  Budget Committee to secure funding for COPS and

          4  she's informed me that she supports these

          5  resolutions.

          6                 One moment. Okay, we have some

          7  members of the public who wish to testify. Before

          8  they do, because some of our Committee members do

          9  have another committee meeting to go to, I will call

         10  the roll and vote on these important resolutions.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We are voting on

         13  both of these resolutions with one vote, and I am

         14  proud to chair this Committee, which is taking this

         15  important action today and cast the first vote in

         16  favor of both of these resolutions. I vote aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Davis.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Again, I would

         19  like to thank Chairman Vallone for his leadership in

         20  this matter. This shows that the new Council is

         21  standing up and representing what's in the best

         22  interest of the City of New York on both of these

         23  resolutions. I overwhelmingly vote aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jennings.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on both.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Monserrate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Aye on

          8  all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Golden.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Can I be

         11  excused to explain my vote, Mr. Chairman?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, sir.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 I, too, will vote aye on both of

         16  these pieces of legislation. Facing a $4.8 billion

         17  deficit this year and similar deficit budgets the

         18  following two years, this legislation is not only

         19  important, this legislation is essential to the

         20  future of the City of New York, and to be able to

         21  let the people know that live here in this great

         22  community, this great City of New York, eight and a

         23  half million people, that the federal government

         24  will stand up and do what's right by the federal

         25  government for this City, not only for this, but for
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          2  future attacks as well.

          3                 Thank you for your expert leadership

          4  today, Mr. Chairman, and to my colleagues, for

          5  stepping forward to make sure that this legislation

          6  was voted on in an affirmative fashion. Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of nine in

          8  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          9  abstentions, both items are adopted.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, to

         11  the members of this Committee, for their assistance

         12  in this matter, and their help at this meeting and

         13  their incisive questioning.

         14                 We do have a member of the public who

         15  wishes to testify, Mr. Al Jordan, from the Briarwood

         16  County Association.

         17                 MR. JORDAN: Community.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Community, okay.

         19                 Step forward, please. Thank you.

         20  Thank you for coming down today.

         21                 MR. JORDAN: Good morning, Council

         22  Chairman, distinguished Council members. I apologize

         23  for not bringing any testimony, I was kind of just

         24  thrown into this at the last minute.

         25                 My testimony will be kind of brief.
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          2                 One of the questions I have in

          3  regards to public safety, having a brother who is a

          4  former New York State and Arizona State Trooper, and

          5  myself having a stinch of public safety, working for

          6  various security firms throughout the City, when I

          7  hear public safety I'm kind of -- have mixed

          8  emotions and have some concerns about public safety

          9  with the regards of some local issues, and I had the

         10  opportunity of being at one of the Council meetings

         11  in my neighborhood with the Briarwood Community

         12  Association and Councilwoman Melinda Katz was one of

         13  the speakers there, as well as Council Member Jim

         14  Gennaro, and he spoke about the policing in the

         15  neighborhood there, in our district, and other

         16  districts in the Queens area, and how on one part he

         17  was delighted that there was extra policing added to

         18  the community, and our president also lobbied to get

         19  more policing in the neighborhood, which we're

         20  grateful for, to say the least.

         21                 Another point of interest is, I was

         22  at the Town Hall meeting in Forest Hills Synagogue

         23  last night, and with the interest of terrorism, I

         24  noticed that we were asked to -- we were searched

         25  going into the synagogue, for obvious reasons, but
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          2  on the outside premises where many of the people

          3  were, I didn't notice any of the City forces there,

          4  which maybe they were covert for various reasons,

          5  but I know blue is supposed to be a deterrent, and I

          6  didn't notice any of the police, the New York --

          7  NYPD in the area or any other security forces. But

          8  my quick question is -- so that was my concern also.

          9                 I'm not sure how maybe -- okay, you

         10  know that there's redistricting and reapportionment

         11  hearings and so forth, or resolutions are coming

         12  out, or legislation and so forth, or demographics,

         13  and I want to know would that affect any policing?

         14  That was one of my questions I had.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Will the

         16  redistricting affect policing? Well, the redistrict

         17  right now is the state redistricting, and

         18  unfortunately this hearing today is not regarding

         19  redistricting or around policing, it's about the

         20  FEMA funds. But you can rest assured that this is

         21  the Public Safety Committee of the City Council, and

         22  we will not let any of the redistricting affect

         23  policing. I don't see how it would at this point,

         24  but if you have any concerns, you could submit them

         25  in writing and perhaps we could have a future
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          2  hearing on it. But at this point I'm not aware that

          3  it will affect policing in any way, and we will not

          4  let that happen.

          5                 MR. JORDAN: Okay.

          6                 My second question, Mr. Chairman, if

          7  I may? I just had three.

          8                 Just a point of interest. I had the

          9  distinct pleasure of meeting Lieutenant Gary Adams

         10  from the 101 Blacks in Law Enforcement, and also the

         11  president of the LOA, Latinos Officer Association,

         12  Anthony Miranda, were they invited to these hearings

         13  by any chance?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We did not

         15  invite any specific law enforcements groups. We did

         16  reach out to the Police Department, but working with

         17  the Mayor we decided OMB would be able to answer our

         18  questions, since the Police Department has already

         19  testified in favor of these propositions.

         20                 MR. JORDAN: Okay. Just curious.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm sorry, do

         22  you have anything specific to either of these

         23  resolutions, because otherwise --

         24                 MR. JORDAN: Just that I'm in favor.

         25                 But I heard public safety, and that
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          2  was basically it on the policing issue. This is an

          3  issue of crime in the neighborhood and policing, is

          4  it not?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm sorry, the

          6  purpose right now is not for us to be answering

          7  questions. The people who sit in that seat answer

          8  our questions, and Councilwoman Katz has a statement

          9  she would like to make.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just want to

         11  correct something from last night.

         12                 The Forest Hill Jewish Center held a

         13  rally with almost 1,000 people that came in order to

         14  support Israel and give their support to the sisters

         15  and brothers that are there, and Mr. Jordan

         16  mentioned whether or not there were police force

         17  outside, and I just want for the record to show,

         18  Captain Servelli of the 112th Precinct, two

         19  sergeants, and two community officers that I saw

         20  were actually standing outside the synagogue and

         21  made their rounds around at the entire rally, just

         22  so you know for the record.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         24  Councilwoman.

         25                 Thank you for coming down today.
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          2                 At this point I would like to adjourn

          3  this hearing, and state that these resolutions

          4  should be on the calendar at the next Stated Meeting

          5  and I thank you all for your work.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 11:50 a.m.)
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